
IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

150 N. MAIN STREET 
IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 

REGULAR MEETING DECEMBER 9, 2024 
5:35 P.M. 

Walter Bargen, Chair Justin Shattuck, Board Member 
Neil Docherty, Vice Chair  Steve Robbins, Board Member 
Kim Jorgensen, Secretary Jessica Montoya, Board Member 
Stu Davis, Treasurer John Genord, Board Member  
Joi Kempf, Board Member Barbara Yockey, Mayor   

A G E N D A 
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. ROLL CALL
4. CONSENT AGENDA – (pgs 3-14)

AGENDA  
     MEETING MINUTES: Special Meeting November 4, 2024; Executive Session (provided at meeting) 

FINANCIAL REPORTS: through November 30, 2024 
DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report  
DDA Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report 

5. CORRESPONDENCE – (none)
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION (none)
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. 338 Third Street Negotiating

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:  None

10. NEW BUSINESS:
A. 375 N. Almont Avenue Façade Grant (pgs 15-27)
B. Revenue Sharing MOU – Public Safety (pgs 29-31)
C. Revenue Sharing MOU – Seniors (pgs 33-35)
D. Revenue Sharing MOU – Veterans (pgs 37-39)
E. Irrigation Services Proposals (pgs 41-43)
F. Landscape / Annual Flowers Proposals (pgs 45-50)
G. Rotary Park Improvement Project (pgs 51-63)
H. Municipal Parking Lease Renewals (pgs 65-67)

   CLOSED SESSION – For the purpose of property acquisition (if needed) 

11. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (pgs 69-73)
12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS
14. ADJOURNMENT

Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director  Posted November 25, 2024 
NEXT REGULAR MEETING: January 13, 2025 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

2



Consent Agenda 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Items Attached: 
a. Meeting Agenda
b. Meeting Minutes

• November 4th Special Session
• November 4th Closed Session (provided at meeting)

c. Financial Reports – Ending November 30, 2024
• DDA Expenditure Report = $ 25,917.87
• Check Register Report = $ 15,216.42
• Credit Statement – Oct & Nov
• Ending Fund Balance Sheet = $ 221,638.01

d. Spreadsheet of FY 2024-25 monthly City administrative transfers –
• November Totals $5,690.99

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

Recommendation:   Motion to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 

3



IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
Special Meeting  

November 4, 2024 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, November 4, 2024, at Imlay City Fire Hall, 
571 E. Borland, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:33 pm 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll. 
 Present: Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Jessica Montoya, Justin Shattuck, John Genord, Steve Robbins, Mayor Joi Kempf, 

Chairman Walter Bargen 
        Absent: Neil Docherty (excused), Barbara Yockey (arrived 5:41 pm)   
 Also Present: Chris Bishop, Sam Moore 
           Quorum Present 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to approve the consent agenda items as presented. Consent agenda items 
include: 

 Meeting agenda with additions; regular meeting minutes October 14, 2024 
 FINANCIAL REPORTS – through October 31, 2024; DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report  

Director Malzahn reported that tax revenue was received for $70,624.56 and MI Community Stabilization funds 
were received of $18,333.53, which is less than anticipated in our budget. 

  Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report 
 All in Favor 8 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
5. CORRESPONDENCE – none 
 
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Item will be discussed during closed session 
 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – 

A. City/DDA Revenue Sharing MOU / City Services Negotiating Committee Recommendation 
The Board reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding, drafted by city manager Horton detailing the results from 
meetings the negotiating committee held with city management. Terms of the MOU include an annual 
administrative transfer of 15% of the total DDA annual city tax capture to help offset city-borne costs associated 
with the downtown area.  The revenue sharing will include services utilized by the DDA for city staff (bookkeeper, 
clerk/treasurer, etc) plus office space.  Furthermore, the DDA agrees to continue to pay the monthly utility 
charges to operate the street lighting in the downtown area (but not those on municipal-owned properties), 
monthly usage fees for office equipment, insurance coverage on all DDA assets, and for lawncare maintenance of 
the grass in the downtown area parks/depot drive.  
Under this new MOU the DDA will now capture monthly interest income on its fund balance and will look to 
reduce utility costs by converting the downtown lights to LED. 

4



MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the Revenue Sharing Agreement as presented, pending 
confirmation on interest payments from the city treasurer. 
All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

B. 2024 Farmers Market Final Report
Market Manager Chris Bishop presented her completed reporting documents with state agencies for the 2024
market season.  Detailed reports for sales and attendance were provided to the Board.  Discussion was held for 
potential changes to next season's market (times, number of weeks, location etc) 

NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED 

10. NEW BUSINESS

A. Façade Grant Application
Director Malzahn recommended the following amendments be made to the Façade Grant Application to better 

align the grant program to the mission of the DDA. Add the following point to the guidelines: 
• The property where the work is to be done MUST be occupied and open to the public with regular

business operating hours.

Add the following point under the ineligible projects list: 
• Projects considered routine maintenance (cleaning, power washing, trash removal etc.)

MOTION by Davis, supported by Jorgensen to amend the Façade Grant Application as presented. 
All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

B. 2025 Regular Meeting and Event Dates
Director Malzahn presented a list of proposed meeting, concert and informational meeting dates.  In 
accordance with the open meetings act the meetings must be published annually and easily available to the 
public.  Malzahn will post on the DDA website and publish in the TCT newspaper.   

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve and publish the 2025 calendar dates for meetings and events as 
presented and to cancel the November 18, 2024 regular meeting due to lack of agenda items. 

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

C. Annual Audit Report
The DDA is required by law to have an annual audit completed by an independent professional.  Per the city-
awarded contract, King & King Accounting performs this billable service for the DDA as part of the City of Imlay 
City annual audit.  Director Malzahn provided DDA-related results to the Board.  The full audit report will be 
presented to the City Commission at their November 19th meeting. 
The DDA was invoiced and paid $817.37 to King and King this fiscal year.  
NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED 

CLOSED SESSION - for the purposes of property acquisition 
MOTION by Davis supported by Robbins to enter closed session at 5:59 pm 
 All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:09 PM 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins for support of the offer to purchase the three city-owned parcels by the IC 
Holdings Corporation. 

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Montoya, Genord, Bargen 
NAYS –Shattuck, Yockey, Kempf 
MOTION CARRIED 6/3 

11. DIRECTORS REPORT

5



Malzahn provided her written report in the meeting packet for November 2024.  At the meeting Malzahn also 
reported that she ordered more c7 lamps for the holiday decorations because the DPW in preparations noted a 
shortage.  She also reported a new business was coming to 151 E. Third Street, and that the owner had reached 
out to her.  Malzahn drafted a MOU for the sharing of the Fire Hall space for the Kringle Market based on an 
understanding reached at the city commission meeting with lease tenant J&J Liquidators. 

 
12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none 
 
13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 pm 
All in Favor 9 Ayes/Nays 0  
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

 
Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, December 9, 2024, at 5:35 PM 
 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 
 
DDA APPROVED:  
 
CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



City Adm
inistrative Applied Charges

2023-2024 Budget
$30,000.00

$35,000.00
324,500.00

M
onth

Electricity               Street 
Lam

ps
Copier                    G

L 
M

isc.  #956.000

O
ffice Supplies      

N
on-DDA 

Purchased
Phones          

G
L# 853.000    

City G
rounds 

M
aintenance    
G

L M
isc.  

#956.000
O

ther
Adm

inistrative 
Transfer

 Legal Services 
G

L# 826.000 

Com
puter 

Services     G
L# 

818.000

O
ld Fire H

all 
Consum

ers 
Energy

W
ater Usage for 
dow

ntow
n 

irrigation

 M
M

L Liability 
Insurance G

L# 
830.000 

M
onthly Totals

7/1/2023
$2,665.23

$50.56
$48.55

$840.00
$35,000.00

$38,604.34
8/1/2023

$2,650.84
$50.24

$119.02
$63.46

$840.00
$3,723.56

9/1/2023
$2,703.44

$26.95
$81.10

$840.00
$6.93

$3,658.42
10/1/2023

$2,801.50
$63.38

$7.36
$840.00

$1,073.34
$4,785.58

11/1/2023
$2,818.39

$207.29
$44.64

$162.47
$3,232.79

12/1/2023
$3,395.95

$70.88
$22.51

$68.34
$70.40

$3,628.08
1/1/2024

$4,022.87
$55.94

$31.32
$113.05

$4,223.18
2/1/2024

$2,927.46
$65.76

$71.27
$114.60

$3,179.09
3/1/2024

$2,810.06
$97.35

$16.39
$55.79

$2,979.59
4/1/2024

$4,441.57
$26.95

$57.04
$55.33

$806.40
$189.56

$5,576.85
5/1/2024

$4,145.07
$80.91

$46.54
$18.86

$806.40
$375.00

$5,472.78
6/1/2024

$4,013.79
$48.77

$11.90
$50.00

$806.40
480.00

$                 
$187.50

$16.00
$5,614.36

$43,396.10
$909.64

$469.18
$799.79

$6,585.60
$1,715.23

$35,000.00
480.00

$                 
$187.50

$16.00
$89,355.54

2024-2025 Budget
$30,000.00

$4,000.00
$1,200.00

$4,000.00
$35,000.00

200.00
$              

6/12/2788
7/1/2024

$3,999.93
$64.66

$9.43
$806.40

$13.30
$4,192.41

$9,086.13
8/1/2024

$4,243.14
$70.00

$177.87
$806.40

30.00
$                    

200.95
974.90

$              
$6,503.26

9/24/2024
$4,093.51

$37.97
$121.03

$806.40
200.95

$5,259.86
10/31/2024

$4,632.38
$33.87

$16.50
$64.67

13.45
$4,760.87

11/30/2024
$4,454.62

$80.27
$162.20

$806.40
187.5

$5,690.99

14



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10a. 202 E. Third Street – John Lengemann 
Façade Grant Application 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: John Lengemann submitted a Façade Grant Application (only one estimate is 
included) to the DDA office on November 21st.  He is seeking funding for 
building exterior improvements and has requested a façade grant in the 
amount of $5,000.00. 

 

Items Attached: 202 E. Third Street Façade Grant Application 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to approve that Façade Grant request in the amount of $5,000 as 
submitted. 

 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

28



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10b. Memorandum of Understanding 
Revenue Sharing Agreement Public Safety Millage 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA voted on April 8,, 2024 to opt-in and begin collecting tax revenues 
generated within the Imlay City DDA TIF district from a Lapeer County special 
voter-approved ballot initiative commencing January 2025. 
 
The Board's decision included gifting back the funds received to support the Imlay 
City Police Department, our local public safety department. 

 
The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which the 
DDA will capture the revenue generated by the 1.45 mils Lapeer County Special 
Voted Public Safety millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District 
beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the ICPD. These funds will be 
dedicated exclusively to public safety improvements and services within the 
boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District.  Director Malzahn recommends that the 
MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year. 

 

Items Attached: MOU Public Safety 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt Bargen to enter 
into a revenue-sharing agreement with the Imlay City Police Dept as 
presented. 

 

29



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

THE IMLAY CITY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND 

THE IMLAY CITY POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into this ___ day of ________, 2025, by 
and between the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as "DDA") and the 
Imlay City Police Department (hereinafter referred to as "ICPD"). 

Purpose 

The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the 
revenue generated by the 1.45 mils Lapeer County Special Voted Public Safety millage within the DDA’s Tax 
Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the ICPD. These 
funds will be dedicated exclusively to public safety improvements and services within the boundaries of the 
Imlay City TIF District. 

Background 

In alignment with its mission to promote economic growth, safety, and quality of life within the downtown 
area, the DDA recognizes the critical role of the ICPD in providing public safety services that foster a secure 
and vibrant environment for residents, businesses, and visitors. By gifting the captured millage funds to the 
ICPD, the DDA seeks to enhance public safety efforts that directly support the TIF District's objectives. 

Terms of Agreement 

1. Capture of Millage Revenue 

o The DDA will capture the 1.45 mils Lapeer County Special Voted Public Safety millage within 
the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District beginning in the 2025 fiscal year until the year 
2029 when the millage expires. 

2. Transfer of Funds 

o The DDA agrees to gift 100% of the captured millage revenue annually to the ICPD for use in 
the TIF District. 

o The transfer of funds shall occur within 30 days of the DDA receiving the captured millage 
revenue. 

3. Use of Funds 

o The ICPD agrees to utilize the gifted funds exclusively for public safety purposes that benefit 
the Imlay City TIF District, which may include, but are not limited to: 

 Hiring or retaining officers assigned to the TIF District. 

 Purchasing equipment or vehicles for use within the TIF District. 

 Implementing public safety programs or initiatives in the TIF District. 

30



o The ICPD will provide an annual report to the DDA detailing the use of the funds, including 
expenditures and outcomes achieved. 

4. Accountability and Reporting 

o Both parties commit to maintaining transparency and accountability regarding the use of 
funds. 

o The DDA reserves the right to request additional information or documentation regarding 
expenditures. 

5. Duration and Termination 

o This MOU shall remain in effect until December 31, 2025, unless amended or terminated by 
mutual agreement of both parties. 

o Either party may terminate this MOU with 90 days written notice to the other party. 

6. Amendments 

o Any amendments to this MOU must be made in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 

Authorization 

This MOU is executed by the undersigned representatives of the DDA and the ICPD, who hereby warrant 
that they have the authority to enter into this agreement. 

 

For the Imlay City DDA: For Imlay City Police Department: 

 

__________________________________________ __________________________________________ 

Walter Bargen [Name] 
Chairperson Police Chief 
Imlay City Downtown Development Authority Imlay City Police Department 
Date: _______________ Date: _______________ 

 

This agreement reflects the shared commitment of the DDA and the ICPD to enhancing public safety within 
the Imlay City TIF District, ensuring a safe and thriving downtown for years to come. 

 

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

32



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c. Memorandum of Understanding 
Revenue Sharing Agreement Seniors Millage 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA voted on April 8, 2024 to opt-in and begin collecting tax revenues 
generated within the Imlay City DDA TIF district from a Lapeer County special 
voter-approved ballot initiative commencing January 2025. 
 
The Board's decision included gifting back the funds received to support the Imlay 
City Senior Center. 
 

The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which the 
DDA will capture the revenue generated by the .3916 mils Lapeer County Special 
Voted Senior Services millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District 
beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the Imlay City Senior Center. 
These funds will be dedicated exclusively to support the local Imlay City seniors and 
their families within the city of Imlay City and Imlay Township.  Director Malzahn 
recommends that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year. 

 

Items Attached: MOU Seniors 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt Bargen to enter 
into a revenue-sharing agreement with the Imlay City Senior Center as 
presented. 

 

33



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

THE IMLAY CITY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND 

THE LAPEER COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES AGENCY 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into this ___ day of ________, 2025, 
by and between the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as "DDA") and 
the Lapeer County Senior Services Agency (hereinafter referred to as "LCSSA"). 

Purpose 

The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture the 
revenue generated by the .3916 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Senior Services millage within the 
DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the 
Imlay City Senior Center. The funds will be dedicated to enhancing senior services and programs that 
benefit residents within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District. 

Background 

The DDA recognizes the importance of supporting senior citizens as a vital part of the community. By 
gifting the captured millage funds to the Imlay City Senior Center, the DDA aims to ensure that senior 
residents within the TIF District have access to enhanced resources, services, and programs that 
contribute to their well-being and quality of life. 

Terms of Agreement 

1. Capture of Millage Revenue 

o The DDA will capture the .3916 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Senior Services millage 
within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District starting in the 2025 fiscal year until 
the year 2026 when the millage expires. 

2. Transfer of Funds 

o The DDA agrees to gift 100% of the captured millage revenue annually to the Imlay City 
Senior Center for use in the Imlay City TIF District. 

o The transfer of funds shall occur within 30 days of the DDA receiving the captured 
millage revenue. 

3. Use of Funds 

o The LCSSA agrees to utilize the gifted funds exclusively for programs, services, or 
initiatives benefiting senior residents within the Imlay City TIF District. These may 
include, but are not limited to: 

 Senior wellness programs and activities. 

 Facility improvements or equipment purchases for the Imlay City Senior Center. 

34



 Transportation services or other supportive resources for seniors. 

o An annual report detailing the use of funds, including expenditures and outcomes 
achieved, shall be provided by the LCSSA to the DDA. 

4. Accountability and Reporting 

o Both parties commit to maintaining transparency and accountability regarding the use of 
funds. 

o The DDA reserves the right to request additional information or documentation related 
to the use of funds. 

5. Duration and Termination 

o This MOU shall remain in effect until December 31, 2025, unless amended or terminated 
by mutual agreement of both parties. 

o Either party may terminate this MOU with 90 days written notice to the other party. 

6. Amendments 

o Any amendments to this MOU must be made in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 

Authorization 

This MOU is executed by the undersigned representatives of the DDA and the LCSSA, who hereby 
warrant that they have the authority to enter into this agreement. 

 

For the Imlay City DDA: For Imlay City VFW Post 2492: 

 

__________________________________________ __________________________________________ 

Walter Bargen [Name] 
Chairperson Commander 
Imlay City Downtown Development Authority Imlay City VFW Post 2492 
Date: _______________ Date: _______________ 

 

This agreement reflects the shared commitment of the DDA and the LCSSA to supporting the senior 
population within the Imlay City TIF District, fostering a thriving and inclusive community for all 
residents. 

 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

36



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c. Memorandum of Understanding 
Revenue Sharing Agreement Veterans Millage 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA voted on April 8, 2024 to opt-in and begin collecting tax revenues 
generated within the Imlay City DDA TIF district from a Lapeer County special 
voter-approved ballot initiative commencing January 2025. 
 
The Board's decision included gifting back the funds received to support the Imlay 
City VFW and American Legion, our local veterans' support posts. 

 
The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which the 
DDA will capture the revenue generated by the 1.850 mils Lapeer County Special 
Voted Veterans millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District 
beginning in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the Imlay City VFW Post 2492. 
These funds will be dedicated exclusively to support the local Imlay City veterans 
and their families within the city of Imlay City and Imlay Township.  Director 
Malzahn recommends that the MOU be in effect for a single fiscal year. 

 

Items Attached: MOU Veterans 
 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to authorize Director Malzahn and Board Chair Walt Bargen to enter 
into a revenue-sharing agreement with Imlay City VFW Post 2492 as 
presented. 

 

37



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

THE IMLAY CITY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
AND 

IMLAY CITY VFW POST 2492 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into this ___ day of ________, 
2024, by and between the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as 
"DDA") and Imlay City VFW Post 2492 (hereinafter referred to as "VFW"). 

Purpose 

The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which the DDA will capture 
the revenue generated by the 1.850 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Veterans millage within the 
DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District starting in 2025 and transfer these funds as a gift to the 
VFW. These funds will be used exclusively to support veterans’ programs, services, and initiatives 
within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District. 

Background 

The DDA acknowledges the important contributions of veterans to the community and the role of 
VFW Post 2492 in providing essential services and support to local veterans. By gifting the captured 
millage funds to the VFW, the DDA aims to enhance the programs, services, and infrastructure 
available to veterans while furthering the DDA's goal of fostering a vibrant and supportive downtown 
community. 

Terms of Agreement 

1. Capture of Millage Revenue 

o The DDA will capture the 1.850 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Veterans millage 
within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District starting in the 2025 fiscal year 
through the year 2029 when the millage expires. 

2. Transfer of Funds 

o The DDA agrees to gift 100% of the captured millage revenue annually to Imlay City 
VFW Post 2492. 

o The transfer of funds shall occur within 30 days of the DDA receiving the captured 
millage revenue. 

3. Use of Funds 

o The VFW agrees to utilize the gifted funds exclusively for programs, services, and 
initiatives benefiting veterans within the Imlay City TIF District. Eligible uses include, 
but are not limited to: 

 Support for veteran outreach and assistance programs. 

38



 Facility improvements or equipment upgrades to enhance services to 
veterans. 

 Community events or initiatives honoring veterans. 

 Other activities directly benefiting veterans within the TIF District. 

o An annual report detailing the use of funds, including expenditures and measurable 
outcomes, shall be submitted to the DDA. 

4. Accountability and Transparency 

o Both parties commit to maintaining transparency and accountability regarding the 
transfer and use of funds. 

o The DDA reserves the right to request additional documentation related to fund 
utilization to ensure compliance with this agreement. 

5. Duration and Termination 

o This MOU shall remain in effect until December 31, 2025, unless amended or 
terminated by mutual agreement of both parties. 

o Either party may terminate this MOU with 90 days written notice to the other party. 

6. Amendments 

o Any amendments to this MOU must be made in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 

 

Authorization 

This MOU is executed by the undersigned representatives of the DDA and the VFW, who hereby 
warrant that they have the authority to enter into this agreement. 

 

For the Imlay City DDA: For Imlay City VFW Post 2492: 

 

__________________________________________ __________________________________________ 

Walter Bargen [Name] 
Chairperson Commander 
Imlay City Downtown Development Authority Imlay City VFW Post 2492 
Date: _______________ Date: _______________ 

 

This agreement reflects the shared commitment of the DDA and the VFW to supporting local 
veterans, enhancing their access to vital services, and contributing to the overall vitality of the Imlay 
City TIF District. 

39



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

40



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10f: Irrigation Services Request for Proposal 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA issued an RFP seeking proposals for Irrigation Services to assist with the 
sprinkler system infrastructure in the DDA District on November 20, 2024.  A bid 
opening was held at 3:00 pm on Friday, November 22nd with two submissions 
received. 

Items Attached: Aqua Turf (current provider) 
 ($600 start-up and winterization, $80 hr for repairs as needed) 
 
 Techseven Company 
 ($2280 start-up and winterization) 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation:  Motion to retain the services of Aqua Turg for the purpose of 
 Providing irrigation system services in the amount of $600 annually and enter 

into a contract for a 3-year term ending December 31, 2027. 
   
 

 

41



42



43



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

44



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10f: Landscape Services Request for Proposal 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA issued an RFP seeking proposals for Landscape Services to assist with the 
annual flower plantings and maintenance in the DDA District on November 20, 
2024.  A bid opening was held at 3:15 pm on Friday, November 22nd with two 
submissions received. 

Items Attached: GreenScape Solutions (current provider) 
 ($35,000 annual plantings, no submission for bid item #2 maintenance) 
 
 Fineline Landscape 
 ($36,785 annual plantings, $11,500 maintenance = $48,285) 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation:  Motion to retain the services of Fineline Landscape for the purpose of 
 providing landscape services and annual flower planting in the amount of 

$48,285 and enter into a one-year contract ending December 2025. 
   
 

 

45



46



47



48



49



50



AGENDA ITEM NB 10g: Rotary Park Improvements 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Background: Improvements are needed in Rotary Park, and no short-term plans are 
included in the Imlay City Parks Master Plan allocated to this playground area 
dedicated to 3-5 year olds.   

Previous updates were funded in collaboration between the DDA and the IC 
Rotary Club.  Director Malzahn and MDA Director Dana Walker have met 
with several vendors to explore costs and equipment needs to make Rotary 
Park ADA-compliant and family-friendly to parkgoers. 

Items Attached: Rotary Park assets and price quoted 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

Recommendation: Motion to proceed with Rotary Park improvement project, pending Parks 
Commission approvals, with a funding commitment of $_______________. 

51



Rotary Park 
“Building our legacy, caring for our community” 

 

 

Proposed Scope of Work 

Cleanup and re-use some existing play equipment, remove old swing and slide equipment, add 
covered picnic area, expand parking area, remove overgrown pines and plant new shade trees. 

 

Budget:  Playscape Equipment = $36,209 

 24’x40’ Pavilion Structure = $32,000 

 Tree and Landscaping materials = $8,000 

 Wi-Fi and Camera System = $5,000 

 Total = $81,209 

 

Funding Sources:  IC Rotary = 10% of project cost (proposed) 

 IC DDA = $________________ 

 IC DPW =  $11,148 (In-Kind) 

 IC Parks & Rec Commission 

                    Grants: Lapeer County Community Foundation 
     (rolling funds – apply by the 15th of each month) 
 
 Four County Community Foundation 
    (Quarterly competitive grant application deadlines: Jan 1, April 1, July 1, Oct 1) 
 
 DNR Passport Recreation Grant  
                                             (Deadline – April 1 / Awards Dec (funding following calendar year) 
      Competitive grant with a 25% grant match required  – up to $150,000 

52



53



54



55



56



57



58



City of Imlay City
Attn: Craig Horton
150 N. Main St.
Imlay City, MI 48444
UNITED STATES
Phone: 810-724-2135 Ext. 1306
citymanager@imlaycity.org

Ship to Zip 48444

Quantity Part # Description Unit Price Amount

1872 INSTALL GT-Impax - (1872 SF) Install of Engineered Wood Fiber (93 CY) $1.20 $2,246.40

1872 EWF GT-Impax - (1872 SF) Supply of Engineered Wood Fiber (93 CY) $1.20 $2,246.40

1 INSTALL Installation - Installation of Game Time Pieces $7,000.00 $7,000.00

1872 Excavation GT-Impax - Excavation of the pit down to 12" $2.75 $5,148.00

1 R/D Installation - Removal and Disposal of Existing Equipment - 
R/D of Existing Swing and Freestanding Slide 

$6,000.00 $6,000.00

1 R/R GT-Impax - Remove and Relocate Spring Pod $1,200.00 $1,200.00

144 Concrete Pad GT-Impax - 12' x 12' Concrete Pad 144 SF $19.00 $2,736.00

1 1308 GT-Site - H.D. Accessible Picnic Table W/ Alum $1,562.00 $1,562.00

44 4862 GameTime - 12" Playground Border $83.00 $3,652.00

1 19447 GameTime - 3 in a Row Panel Below Dk $2,976.00 $2,976.00

1 19448 GameTime - Puppy Maze Panel Below Dk $2,622.00 $2,622.00

1 QRI023 GT-Shade - GTSD161612IG 16X16X12 SQ HIP W/GLD IG $6,048.00 $6,048.00

1 RDU GameTime - 1 Bay Swing $9,004.00 $9,004.00

(2) 5167 -- Expression Swing Tandem

(6) 12009 -- 3 1/2"Uprt Ass'Y Alum 6'

(1) 12583 -- Ada Primetime Swing Frame, 3 1/2" Od

1 RDU GameTime - Balance Beam and Pods $2,169.00 $2,169.00

(1) 564 -- Curved Balance Beam

(2) 6232 -- Pod (1'-0")

Sub Total $54,609.80

Freight $3,093.76

Total $57,703.56

This quotation is subject to policies in the current GameTime Playground Catalog and the following terms and conditions.  Our
quotation is based on shipment of all items at one time to a single destination, unless noted, and changes are subject to price
adjustment.  Purchases to be supported by your written purchase order made out to GAMETIME C/O SINCLAIR
RECREATION.  A 2.5% PROCESSING FEE WILL BE ADDED TO ALL ORDERS PAID VIA CREDIT CARD. 
 
Pricing: f.o.b. factory, firm for 30 days from date of quotation unless otherwise noted on quotation.  Sales tax will be added at
time of invoicing unless a tax exemption certificate is provided at time of order entry. 
 
Payment terms: Net 30 days for tax supported governmental agencies. A 1.5% per month finance charge will be imposed on
all past due accounts. Equipment shall be invoiced separately from other services and shall be payable in advance of those
services and project completion. Retainage not accepted. 
 

GameTime c/o Sinclair Recreation 
176 E Lakewood Blvd 
Holland, MI 49424 
Ph: 800-444-4954 
Fax: 616-392-8634

08/16/2024
Quote # 

106017-01-03

Rotary Park - Option 3

Page 1 of 3

59



60



61



Recreation Passport Grants

Program objective

The objective for the program is to provide funding to local units for the development of

public recreation facilities. This includes the development of new facilities and the

renovation of old facilities.

Criteria

Criteria emphasize renovations to existing facilities that have outlived their useful life

expectancy. At least 25 percent of the cost of the project is required as match from

applicants. Full criteria can be found in the application guidelines booklet.

Applicant eligibility

A local unit of government, including cities, villages, townships, and counties, or any

combination thereof in which an authority is legally established to provide public

recreation, or the Huron-Clinton Metropolitan Authority or regional recreation

authorities formed under the Recreational Authorities Act, 2000 PA 321, or trailway

commissions formed under Part 721, Michigan Trailways Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended.

Application process

Submittal of the grant application in MiGrants

Evaluation by DNR staff

Recommendation by DNR staff to DNR Director

Approval by the DNR Director

Deadline

DNR

62

https://migrants.intelligrants.com/


Applications must be submitted into MiRecGrants by April 1 each year.

Timeline

Grant award noti�cation is expected to occur annually in December. Project agreements

will be offered shortly after the award noti�cation.

Dollar amount available

Development project minimum/maximum grant amount is $7,500 to $150,000.

Source of funds

Grants are funded through Recreation Passport revenue deposited in the Local Parks

and Recreation Facilities Fund.

Authority

Part 19 of PA 451 of 1994, as amended.

Contact

Christie Bayus, Grants Management, at 517-242-8737 or BayusC@Michigan.gov or Grants

management staff

Application Workshop Video

2024 Recreation Passport Grant Program Application Guidelines

Site Control

MiGrants

Forms and information for applicants

63

http://www.legislature.mi.gov/(S(d2t441l5rqv01rpta12dsbvx))/mileg.aspx?page=getObject&objectName=mcl-451-1994-I-19&highlight=section%20AND%201907
mailto:bayusc@michigan.gov
https://www.michigan.gov/dnr/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/GMSContactMap.pdf?rev=17a44d26e2e2407182b40666a60b03c6&hash=B756A5CCDD5FDC09DD9AEEDF70343CE1
https://www.michigan.gov/dnr/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/GMSContactMap.pdf?rev=17a44d26e2e2407182b40666a60b03c6&hash=B756A5CCDD5FDC09DD9AEEDF70343CE1
https://www.michigan.gov/dnr/buy-and-apply/grants/rec/grant-workshops
https://www.michigan.gov/dnr/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/RP-Grant/IC1956---RP-App-Guidelines-2024.pdf?rev=2b0ccb966e144aaf88eaf3a7e426bfed&hash=85C24FC920B3F082D19949B0DA187BB3
https://www.michigan.gov/dnr/-/media/Project/Websites/dnr/Documents/Grants/FOD-Grants/PR1956_SiteControl.pdf?rev=44e4490874a945bf99ef92d3820c2ad7&hash=67E1FEAC6302EEC1948D6A5162F57352
https://www.michigan.gov/dnr/buy-and-apply/grants/rec/migrants-a


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

64



 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10h: Municipal Parking Lease Renewals  
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: According to records City management entered into DDA-facilitated lease 
agreements with several property owners for use of their property as 
municipal parking.  In exchange for public use, the owners received 
maintenance and repairs to these areas.  The leases were for a term of 15 
years and are set to expire in 2025. 

 

Items Attached: Almont Avenue Alley: 
 Armando Conzales – (parcel # I19-90-500-000-00) - March 12 
 Janet O’Donnell (parcel # I19-90-200-000-00) – March 3 
 Antonelli Property Management (parcel #I19-90-800-000-00) – February 16 
 Lynn Craig (parcel #I19-90-900-000-00) – August 26 
 Mr. & Mrs. Guerrero (parcel #I19-91-000-000-00 – March 22 
 CSB Bank (parcel #I19-90-300-000-00) August 10 
 
 Depot Drive: 
 Bee Gee’s Family Shoes (parcel #I19-91-100-000-00) – August 23 
  
 Gem & Diamond: 
 Jeff Johnson (parcel #I19-64-300-000-00) September 1 
 
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to pursue lease renewals with the property owner for an additional 
15 years. 

65



66



67



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

68



   

 

 

Directors Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: December 9, 2024 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Items Attached: December Report 
 Weekly email reports 
  
 
Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

 

 

 

69



  Director’s Report – December 2024 
 

Promotions/Events 
• On-going Social media postings and engagement with downtown merchants on Facebook and Instagram. 
• Staff and I created ads and social media postings for Kringle Market, Winterfest, Small Business Saturday, and 

Thanksgiving. 
• Updated website calendar of events and other happenings 
• Continued planning for WinterFest Event 

 

Economic Development 
• Continued to assist a developer with Johnny’s Place purchase 
• Created an Imlay City data marketing flyer 

 

Place Making/Streetscape 
• Met with holiday lighting contractor for decoration installation 
• Scheduled repair work for electrical issues with holiday lights 
• Held two bid openings for the two RFP’s issued for Annual Flowers/Landscaping and Irrigation Maintenance 
• Prepared Rotary Park Proposal, and presented it to IC Rotary Club for consideration 
• Presented Rotary Park Proposal to Parks and Rec Commission 

 
Grants:  

• Assisted Four County Community Foundation with EPA grant submission 
• Researched DNR Recreation Passport NOFO 
• Continued planning for MEDC NOFO RAP 3.0 grant application(s) 
• Processed reimbursement grant payment for 206 E. Third Street 

 

Billboard:  
• Created and submitted artwork for WinterFest 
• Submitted artwork for King and King Jan/Feb ad campaign 

 
Imlay City Façade Corp 

• Created façade grant application and distributed it to interested parties 
• Created scoring matrix for application submissions 
• Filled DBA forms with LARA 

 

Meetings and Other:   
• Attended Rotary Club weekly meetings. 
• Processed invoices, check requests, and mailed payments. 
• Made updates to the DDA website for current meeting information.  
• Attended November 19th City Commission Meeting for Third Street Properties Proposal 
• Attended December 3rd City Commission Meeting for Third Street Properties Proposal 
• Held follow-up negotiating meeting with Mayor Kemp and City Manager 
• Attend monthly department head meeting 
• Attended the monthly Hispanic Cultural/Services meeting 
• Assisted the City with the Demo RFP issued for the old sign shop 
• Attended the 2-day MDA Fall Conference in Ann Arbor 
• Attended MDA MiPDM post-conference meeting 
• Prepared meeting minutes, agendas, action item sheets, and board packets for Informational Meeting, regular 

DDA meeting, and Imlay City Façade Corp meeting December 9th meetings. 

70



From: Christine Malzahn
To: "jgenord@icdda.com"; wbargen@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com; "byockey@imlaycity.org";

jkempf@imlaycity.org; kjorgensen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com;
"jmontoya@icdda.com"

Cc: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending November 15th
Date: Friday, November 15, 2024 3:39:00 PM
Attachments: 2024.11.4.24 Special Meeting Minutes.docx

image001.png
2024.11.4 Imlay Facade Corp Meeting Minutes.docx
Imlay City Facade Corp GRANT Application.pdf
Facade Corp Loan & Grants Guidelines updated 2024.doc

Hello All,
 
It’s been a busy busy two weeks since our last meeting.  I attended the MDA Fall Workshop
conference in Ann Arbor last Thursday and Friday – it was great to hear and bring back some
new ideas on DDA Best Practices, economic development tools, and volunteerism.  I’m eager
to share this information and put it into practice.  Think Main Street America…. Together we
can do this!
 
Attached you will find the meeting minutes for both the DDA and Façade Corporation.  Kindly
let me know if you see anything that needs to be corrected.
 
Also attached is the Imlay Façade Corp Grant Application for projects.  You may have seen this
posted on Facebook or our website, but I’m sharing it with you if you have a project that
qualifies or know of anyone looking for an opportunity to improve their building.  Note the
deadline is December 13th – so we will need to hold a special meeting on the 16th to score the
applications!  Are you available?
 
If possible, please plan to attend the city commission meeting next Tuesday.  The
commissioners will entertain our offer to purchase the Fire Hall and old DPW property.  I know
there is some opposition to the terms in the contract, but hopefully, we can encourage the city
commission to work with the Façade Corporation to help us improve these parcels.
 
WinterFest planning is moving along.  As of yesterday, the Kringle Market vendor spaces are
SOLD OUT (we now have a waiting list in case the last few do not pay their booth fees).
 Reservations for Lunch with Santa is also full – this year we had room for 160 people! Amazing
show of interest.
 
Watch for the holiday decorations to be installed soon – I’m excited to see how the new
addition of colored lamps looks in downtown.
 
Lastly, our 5 new wayfinding signs are installed along Van Dyke – they look great!
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director

71

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:jgenord@icdda.com
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:byockey@imlaycity.org
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org



1

1





IMLAY CITY

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY



Special Meeting 

November 4, 2024

MEETING MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, November 4, 2024, at Imlay City Fire Hall, 571 E. Borland, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

	Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:33 pm



2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll.

	Present: Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Jessica Montoya, Justin Shattuck, John Genord, Steve Robbins, Mayor Joi Kempf, Chairman Walter Bargen

        Absent: Neil Docherty (excused), Barbara Yockey (arrived 5:41 pm)		

	Also Present: Chris Bishop, Sam Moore

           Quorum Present



4. CONSENT AGENDA

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to approve the consent agenda items as presented. Consent agenda items include:

	Meeting agenda with additions; regular meeting minutes October 14, 2024

	FINANCIAL REPORTS – through October 31, 2024; DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report 

Director Malzahn reported that tax revenue was received for $70,624.56 and MI Community Stabilization funds were received of $18,333.53, which is less than anticipated in our budget.

		Balance Sheet; City Allocated Expense Report

	All in Favor 8 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. CORRESPONDENCE – none



6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none



7. COMMITTEE REPORTS

338 Third Street Negotiating Committee – Item will be discussed during closed session



8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none



9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS –

A. City/DDA Revenue Sharing MOU / City Services Negotiating Committee Recommendation

The Board reviewed a Memorandum of Understanding, drafted by city manager Horton detailing the results from meetings the negotiating committee held with city management. Terms of the MOU include an annual administrative transfer of 15% of the total DDA annual city tax capture to help offset city-borne costs associated with the downtown area.  The revenue sharing will include services utilized by the DDA for city staff (bookkeeper, clerk/treasurer, etc) plus office space.  Furthermore, the DDA agrees to continue to pay the monthly utility charges to operate the street lighting in the downtown area (but not those on municipal-owned properties), monthly usage fees for office equipment, insurance coverage on all DDA assets, and for lawncare maintenance of the grass in the downtown area parks/depot drive. 

Under this new MOU the DDA will now capture monthly interest income on its fund balance and will look to reduce utility costs by converting the downtown lights to LED.

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the Revenue Sharing Agreement as presented, pending confirmation on interest payments from the city treasurer.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



B. 2024 Farmers Market Final Report

Market Manager Chris Bishop presented her completed reporting documents with state agencies for the 2024 market season.  Detailed reports for sales and attendance were provided to the Board.  Discussion was held for potential changes to next season's market (times, number of weeks, location etc)

NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED



10. NEW BUSINESS



A. Façade Grant Application

Director Malzahn recommended the following amendments be made to the Façade Grant Application to better align the grant program to the mission of the DDA. Add the following point to the guidelines:

· The property where the work is to be done MUST be occupied and open to the public with regular business operating hours.

Add the following point under the ineligible projects list:

· Projects considered routine maintenance (cleaning, power washing, trash removal etc.)

MOTION by Davis, supported by Jorgensen to amend the Façade Grant Application as presented.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



B. 2025 Regular Meeting and Event Dates

Director Malzahn presented a list of proposed meeting, concert and informational meeting dates.  In accordance with the open meetings act the meetings must be published annually and easily available to the public.  Malzahn will post on the DDA website and publish in the TCT newspaper.  

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve and publish the 2025 calendar dates for meetings and events as presented and to cancel the November 18, 2024 regular meeting due to lack of agenda items.

All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



C. Annual Audit Report

The DDA is required by law to have an annual audit completed by an independent professional.  Per the city-awarded contract, King & King Accounting performs this billable service for the DDA as part of the City of Imlay City annual audit.  Director Malzahn provided DDA-related results to the Board.  The full audit report will be presented to the City Commission at their November 19th meeting.

The DDA was invoiced and paid $817.37 to King and King this fiscal year. 

NO BOARD ACTION NEEDED



CLOSED SESSION - for the purposes of property acquisition

MOTION by Davis supported by Robbins to enter closed session at 5:59 pm	 

 All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:09 PM



MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins for support of the offer to purchase the three city-owned parcels by the IC Holdings Corporation.

		Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Montoya, Genord, Bargen

NAYS –Shattuck, Yockey, Kempf

MOTION CARRIED 6/3







11.  DIRECTORS REPORT

Malzahn provided her written report in the meeting packet for November 2024.  At the meeting Malzahn also reported that she ordered more c7 lamps for the holiday decorations because the DPW in preparations noted a shortage.  She also reported a new business was coming to 151 E. Third Street, and that the owner had reached out to her.  Malzahn drafted a MOU for the sharing of the Fire Hall space for the Kringle Market based on an understanding reached at the city commission meeting with lease tenant J&J Liquidators.



12. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



13. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none



14. ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to adjourn the meeting at 6:20 pm

All in Favor 9 Ayes/Nays 0 

MOTION CARRIED 5/0



Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, December 9, 2024, at 5:35 PM





Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director



DDA APPROVED: 



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:







DDA SPECIAL  MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 4, 2024

PAGE 1







1

1





IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION



Regular Meeting 

November 4, 2024

MEETING MINUTES



A regular meeting of the Imlay City Façade Corporation was held on Monday, November 4, 2024, at Imlay City Fire Hall, 571 E. Borland, Imlay City MI 48444.



1. CALL TO ORDER

Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 6:21 pm



2. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll:

	Present: Kim Jorgensen, Stu Davis, Justin Shattuck, Steve Robbins, Jessica Montoya, John Genord, Barbara Yockey, Mayor Joi Kempf, Chairman Walter Bargen

	Absent: , Neil Docherty

	Also present: Christiana Bishop, Sam Moore

           Quorum Present



3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	MOTION by Yockey supported by Jorgensen to approve the agenda with the addition of NB 6D Authorized Signers.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the October 14, 2024 minutes as presented.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none



6.  NEW BUSINESS



A. Façade Grant /Loan Application

The Board reviewed the revised Grant/Loan application. Sam Moore was present to speak on behalf of the I-69 Corridor Group who will process applications and assist the applicants' creditworthiness determinations.

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the Façade Corp Grant/Loan Application as presented.

	All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY



B. Façade Corp Loan/Grant Procedures

Director Malzahn explained the changes made to the form.  She reviewed this recommendation with the Construction Code Authority to ensure that it aligned with current zoning ordinances.  This form will need to be released asap to building owners so that a project pipeline can be secured.  This is needed to meet the requirements of the RAP 3.0 Façade Grant that the Board would like to submit.

	MOTION by Shattuck, supported by Davis to adopt the Façade Corp Loan/Grant Procedures as presented

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



C. DBA IC Holdings Corporation

The Board reviewed form 541-08-15, as completed by Director Malzahn, for the formal DBA filing of the Imlay City Façade Corp to assume the name IC Holdings Corporation.

	MOTION by Davis, supported by Kempf to authorize Chair Bargen to sign the DBA and Director Malzahn to file with the State office.

AYES – Davis, Kempf, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Montoya, Yockey, Robbins, Genord, Bargen.

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



D. Authorized Signers (added item)

Chair Bargen reported that the signature card on file at Choice One Bank has no current Board members listed as authorized signers.  He recommends that signers updated include: City Manager, City Clerk, Façade Corp Director.

	MOTION by Yockey, supported by Jorgensen to authorize the Imlay City City Manager, City Clerk, and Façade Corp Director to be signers on Imlay City Façade Corp Bank accounts at Choice One Bank.

AYES – Yockey, Jorgensen, Davis, Kempf, Shattuck, Montoya, Robbins, Genord, Bargen.

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



CLOSED SESSION - for the purposes of property acquisition

MOTION by Davis supported by Robbins to enter closed session at 6:35 pm	 

 All in Favor 9/ Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



RE-ENTER REGULAR SESSION AT 6:46 PM



MOTION by Robbins, supported by Genord to approve the purchase agreement as written with the addition of an integration clause.

AYES – Robbins, Genord, Yockey, Jorgensen, Davis, Kempf, Shattuck, Montoya, Bargen.

NAYS – none

MOTION CARRIED 9/0



7.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – Director Malzahn updated the Board on the status of the purchase of Kitty’s Place.  The DDA has received back the earnest deposit monies and was offered a mutual release form.  The Seller no longer is interested in moving the purchase to closing and has secured a new buyer.



9.       ADJOURNMENT

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to adjourn the meeting at 7:15 pm

All in Favor 9 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 







Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________

	                                    Christine Malzahn, Executive Director





FAÇADE CORP BOARD APPROVED:



CITY COMMISSION APPROVED:







IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORP. MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 4, 2024

PAGE 1






IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION 
Building Rehabilitation Program 


150 N. Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444 | 810.724.2135 ext 1307 | imlaycityfacadecorp@icdda.com 
 


 


GRANT APPLICATION 
Prior to completing or if you need assistance with completing this application, please contact Director Christine Malzahn 
who will facilitate questions/concerns associated with this grant program.  ALL APPLICATIONS MUST BE RECEIVED BY 
3:00 PM December 13, 2024 to qualify for this round of funding. 
 


APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
NAME: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
ADDRESS: ___________________________________________________________________________  


BEST PHONE #: ___________   Business  Mobile  Home  
EMAIL:  ________________________ _____________________ 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
OWNER ENTITY NAME: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 


DBA (if different):  _____ EIN # (if applicable): ______________________  


ADDRESS:   ________________________________________  


PHONE: _________  WEBSITE:____________________________________  


TYPE/CATEGORY OF PROPERTY:    ____ ___ 


CURRENT ZOINING: _____________________  


TAX CLASSIFICATION OF OWNER ENTITY: 


 Corporation   LLC  Partnership  Proprietorship  S-Corp  Individual 


PROPERTY IS:  Vacant  Occupied - List Tenants:       


FACILITY/BUILDING IS:  Owned      Leased      Rented  Looking for Space  


PROPERTY IS:  Owned by Business  Owned by Applicant     Owned by Other    


SQUARE FOOTAGE CURRENTLY OCCUPIED:    
SQUARE FOOTAGE ACTIVATED AS A RESULT OF PROJECT:   


 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
AMOUNT OF FINANCING ALREADY SECURED FOR PROJECT: $     


SOURCE OF FUNDS:_______   


AMOUNT YOU and/or OTHER OWNERS PLAN TO INVEST: $  


 
LIST OTHER INVESTORS/OWNERS IF APPLICABLE: 
Name:  Name:  
 


Name:  Name:  
 
 



mailto:imlaycityfacadecorp@icdda.com





 
GRANT PROGRAM INFORMATION: 
Revitalization grant funding is limited to actual funds awarded to the Imlay City Façade Corp through State and Federal 
grant dollars up to a maximum of $500,000 or 50% of eligible costs.  This grant program requires a 50% match from the 
property/business owner(s).  Funds are contingent upon MEDC RAP 3.0 Façade Corp funding, partial awards may be 
approved based on the number of applications received and the amount of State funding awarded to the Imlay City 
Façade Corp.   
 
All qualified properties must be located in or contribute to the Imlay City TIF district.  Buildings must be owner-occupied 
or leased to a business entity with regular business hours open to the public. 
 
Projects must fit the requirements of the local and currently active façade improvement program (see Façade Loan 
Program and Revitalization Grant Design Guidelines & Procedures). 
 
Projects must be completed within 18 months of the grant award.  Any project costs incurred prior to grant award 
contract execution are not reimbursable. 
 
All grant awards require timely reporting requirements and are subject to the terms and conditions of the Michigan 
Economic Development Corporation or other grant awarding agencies. 
 
All applications will be evaluated and scored by the Imlay City Façade Corp., based on: 


1. Location 
2. Capacity to complete the project 
3. Long-term impacts  
4. Financial Viability 
5. Local Impact Considerations (The project should demonstrate how it supports the vision and goals stated in the 


Imlay City master plan or the DDA TIF plan) 
 
Eligible Costs  
"Eligible Costs” are at least one, or any combination, of the following expenditures:  


a. Acquisition or costs for real property;  
b. Fees or costs for alteration, new construction, improvement, demolition, or rehabilitation of buildings of 


an approved project, including utility tap fees, and fees and costs paid to a governmental entity for 
permits, zoning, and inspections;  


c. Costs associated with site improvements such as access (including ADA improvements) and streetscaping 
elements such as lighting, fencing, street furniture, etc.;  


d. Fees or costs for site improvements, including a surface parking lot, parking garage, parking ramp, 
utilities and public infrastructure, such as roads, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping, lighting, grading 
and land balancing;  


e. Real estate developer fees not to exceed 4% of total project costs;  
f. Other costs associated with real estate or place-based infrastructure development may be considered on 


a case-by-case basis.  
 


Award Disbursement  
Awards will be disbursed in two parts. The first disbursement will be for up to fifty percent (50%) of the eligible costs 
submitted, not to exceed fifty percent (50%) of the grant; and, upon Project completion, up to fifty percent (50%) of 
eligible costs submitted, not to exceed the remaining balance of the grant.  
 
There will be no more than two disbursements per project. 


 
  







GRANT REQUEST INFORMATION: 


GRANT REQUEST (check all boxes that apply) 
Note: All awarded grants require a 50% recipient match. Funds are limited  


 Architecture Services  


 Elevator  


 Fire Suppression 


 Vault Fill-In  


 Professional Services-Access Study  


 Exterior Buildings Renovations (must provide detailed descriptions/renderings) 


 Interior Building Improvements (must provide detailed descriptions/renderings) 


 


TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST: $   TOTAL GRANT REQUESTED: $   
ESTIMATED START DATE:   ESTIMATED COMPLETION DATE:      


WILL GRANT CREATE NEW RESIDENTIAL UNITS?  No  Yes - #:   


WILL GRANT REDEVELOP EXISTING RESIDENTIAL UNITS?  No  Yes- #:    
WILL THE COMPLETION OF PROJECT BE DETERMINED BY GRANT AWARD? 


  No  Yes - Please provide proof (via pro forma) 


PROVIDE A BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT: 


 


 


 
APPLICATION CHECKLIST: 
Please ensure the following are submitted with your application: 


 Completed Application Form          Project Pro-Forma  Detailed Cost Estimate(s)  


 Detailed Project Timeline                Design Renderings 


 All existing lien holder agreements (if applicable)  
Note: Applicants are requested to be present at the time of the application’s review. Other documentation could be requested if 
deemed necessary by Imlay City Façade Corp/DDA. Additional information that could be requested are: Credit Reports for all 
business/owners; Proof of equity investment; Personal/business tax returns; Current business financial statement; Cash flow 
statements; Copy of lease/purchase agreement; Commitment letters from other lenders/project participants; Cost Estimates-all 
items being purchases with RLF monies; Articles of incorporation, partnership, and/or operating agreements. 


 
By signing this form, I, the applicant, certify that all information contained above is true and complete to my best knowledge and 
belief. Applicant understands this application and any other information received with it will be retained whether this request is 
approved or denied. 


Applicant Signature:  Date Signed:   
 
Imlay City Façade Corp/DDA Only:  
 
Application Received By:   Date Received:  







 





		IMLAY CITY FAÇADE CORPORATION

		Building Rehabilitation Program

		Applicant Information:

		Property Information:

		Financial Information:

		Grant Program Information:

		Projects must fit the requirements of the local and currently active façade improvement program (see Façade Loan Program and Revitalization Grant Design Guidelines & Procedures).



		Grant Request Information:

		Application Checklist:

		Imlay City Façade Corp/DDA Only:




Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation


FAÇADE LOAN PROGRAM 


and 


REVITALIZATION GRANTS

DESIGN GUIDELINES

&


PROCEDURES


          Adopted by Executive on 7/11/2006


     Last Updated 11/15/2024

LOAN PROGRAM SUMMARY


Imlay City Façade Corporation has been established to facilitate the rehabilitation of the building facades in the commercial district of city of Imlay City. Building owners will have the opportunity to borrow money from the fund at an attractive interest rate for the improvement of their building facades.


AMOUNT:  The fund can loan up to $40,000 at a below-market interest rate for up to 5 years.

FUNDING:  The program is intended to leverage additional funds from private sources that it can use 


in conjunction with other loans.  

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR LOAN PROCESSING (see application for all requirements) *:


· Balance Sheets (3 years)


· Profit and Loss Statement (3 years)


· Projected Cash Flow (by month for 12 months)


· Projected Employment 


 (total persons expected to be employed during the term of the loan)


· Personal Financial Statement of the Applicant


· Verification of Proper Insurance Coverage


· Credit Check


· Verification of Property Tax Paid


· Tax Returns


* If the applicant has no previous financial statements the loan screening will be based on cash flow projections. 


DESIGN GUIDELINES:


The Imlay City Facade Corporation sets these guidelines. The Imlay City Facade Corporation before a loan approval must sign off on the proposed architectural design.


CONTACT INFORMATION:



Christine Malzahn, Executive Director



(810) 724-2135 ext 1307


Sam Moore, Lapeer Development Corp.

                          (810) 667-0080

City of Imlay City


Imlay City Facade Corporation / Façade Loan Corporation


Façade Loan Summary

Loan Procedures


Businesses located within the Imlay City TIF District may borrow up to $40,000 per façade at a below-market interest rate for up to 5 years. These rates are subject to change. 


The Façade Loan Fund is intended to leverage additional funds from private sources; therefore, it may be used in conjunction with other loans.


Marketing


The Imlay City Facade Corporation, located at 150 North Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444, will be responsible for the marketing of the Façade Loan Fund Program within the Imlay City TIF District 

Loan Pool Management


I-69 Regional Development Corporation will administer the loan fund and service the individual loans.


The loan fund is managed cooperatively by the following organizations:


1. The Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation is made up of members of the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority. It is a non-profit corporation that went into agreement with six community banks to provide low interest loans to rehabilitate building exteriors within the Imlay City TIF District 

2. The Imlay City Facade Corporation, created in 1976, has the charge to rehabilitate, revitalize, and promote Downtown Imlay City. As a result, the Imlay City Facade Corporation has financed and implemented a wide range of activities and infrastructure improvements to build and promote downtown Imlay City.


3. The I-69 Regional Development Corporation is a  non-profit Community Development Finance Institute that provides loans and business development coaching to entrepreneurs like you who would like to start or grow a business in Huron, Lapeer, Sanilac, St. Clair, Shiawasee, Tuscola and Genesee Counties, along with any counties with in 20 miles of the border of the aforementioned counties.

Loan Applicant Review

The Façade Loan Corporation and the I-69 Regional Development Corporation will review each loan on the ability to pay basis and have the authority to approve or disapprove a loan request. The I-69 Regional Development Corporation’s financial analyst will present a financial analysis for each loan request to the Façade Loan Corporation for their review.


Approval Criteria

1. The financial information submitted by the applicant and financial analysis prepared by the I-69 Regional Development Corporation adequately demonstrates an ability to repay the loan.


2. If necessary, the Imlay City Facade Corporation Director will make a determination that the building for which the loan is requested is in adequate condition to be rehabilitated and put to commercial use for the term of the loan.


3. The funds loaned are to be used on the façade of the building, except for interior items related to exterior work. The façade loan design guidelines shall establish the criteria for the use of the funds.

4. The usage of grant funds are subject to the eligibility requirements of the awarding agencies.

5. The conditions for all work done are set forth by the Imlay City Facade Corporation.


6. The applicant shall provide the following financial information to the I-69 Regional Development Corporation for the screening of the loan: 


· Balance Sheets (3 years)


· Profit and Loss Statement (3 years)


· Projected Cash Flow (by month for 12 months)


· Projected Employment 


           (total persons expected to employ during the term of the loan)


· Personal Financial Statement of the Applicant


· Verification of Proper Insurance Coverage


· Credit Check


· Verification of Property Tax Paid


· Tax Returns


Loan Approval / Disapproval


The Façade Loan Corporation shall make a formal decision on the approval of each approved design project.


The Closing Process

Upon the approval of the project and façade loan by the Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation, the I-69 Regional Development Corporation coordinates the closing process. The closing fee will be paid at the time of the closing.


At the time of closing, the applicant may be asked to sign the following:


· Affidavit titled, “As to Use of Loan Proceeds for Business Purposes”


· Note


· Participating Business Loan Agreement


· A mortgage

Repayment

The I-69 Regional Development Corporation will provide the applicant with an amortization schedule and coupon book for the loan. Repayments shall begin monthly following the date of closing. Payments are made to the Imlay City Façade Corporation and mailed to the address provided on the closing documents.

In the event of delinquency, the Imlay City Development Corporation will do the following:


1. Make a telephone call to the loan recipient informing them of the delinquency.


2. Follow up the telephone call with a letter.


3. If payment is not received at that point, the Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation will be notified. The corporation will review the loan and action to collect the loan may take place, pursuant to the loan agreements.


In the event it is the decision of the Façade Loan Corporation to take necessary legal action to recover losses of non-performing loans, the stated terms of the façade loan agreement shall become effective.


City of Imlay City


Imlay City Facade Corporation / Façade Loan Corporation


Revitalization Grant Program Summary


Revitalization grant funding is limited to actual funds awarded to the Imlay City Façade Corp through State and Federal grant dollars and requires a 50% match from the property/business owner(s).


All qualified properties must be located in or contribute to the Imlay City TIF district.  Buildings must be owner-occupied or leased to a business entity with regular business hours open to the public.


Must fit the requirements of the local and currently active façade improvement program. 

All grant awards require timely reporting requirements and are subject to the terms and conditions of the Michigan Economic Development Corporation or other grant awarding agencies.

Eligible Costs 

"Eligible Costs” are at least one, or any combination, of the following expenditures: 


a. Acquisition or costs for real property; 


b. Fees or costs for alteration, new construction, improvement, demolition, or rehabilitation of buildings of an approved project, including utility tap fees, and fees and costs paid to a governmental entity for permits, zoning, and inspections; 


c. Costs associated with site improvements such as access (including ADA improvements) and streetscaping elements such as lighting, fencing, street furniture, etc.; 


d. Fees or costs for site improvements, including a surface parking lot, parking garage, parking ramp, utilities and public infrastructure, such as roads, curbs, gutters, sidewalks, landscaping, lighting, grading and land balancing; 


e. Fees or costs for the addition of machinery, equipment or fixtures for an approved project; 


f. Professional fees or costs for an approved project for the following services: architectural, engineering, environmental, and surveying; 


g. Real estate developer fees not to exceed 4% of total project costs; 


h. Other costs associated with real estate or place-based infrastructure development may be considered on a case-by-case basis. 


Loan and Grant Design Procedures


The following is a list of the procedural steps necessary to be completed for the Façade Loan or Grant funds. If it is necessary for your project to deviate from these procedures, the Imlay City Facade Corporation or the Director must be notified at (810) 724-2135 ext 1307.


1. Call the Executive Director to inquire about your possible project. At the initial call, the Executive Director will be able to advise you as to whether your property is within the Downtown TIF District.


2. The potential applicant should then receive a copy of the design guidelines along with the cover letter indicating that the guidelines should be passed on to the applicant’s architect if the applicant has one.


3. The main objective of the Façade Loan Fund is for the restoration and preservation of the buildings, and to maintain the character of the downtown area whenever possible. 


4. The Imlay City Facade Corporation will give a rebate up to $1,000 for design services provided by a licensed architect.


5. The applicant, their licensed architect, the Executive Director, a representative of the Construction Code Authority, the Imlay City Zoning Administrator and an Imlay City Façade Corp board member will meet to discuss preliminary design considerations. At this time, questions regarding procedures can be clarified and the design guidelines will be reviewed.


6. The drawing and written recommendations of the architect for a rehabilitation or new construction project are submitted to the Executive Director. At this time, the project can be evaluated for adherence to the guidelines. 


7. The Executive Director will send a letter with a recommendation to the Imlay City Facade Corporation.  At this time, the Executive Director will do one of the following:


1. Recommend that the Imlay City Façade Corp approve the design project


2. Recommend that the design be submitted to another architectural firm for review


3. Recommend that the applicant and architect reconsider their choice of design if it is not in conformance with the guidelines.


8. The Imlay City Facade Corporation will formally review the project design with the Construction Code Authority and the Imlay City Zoning Administrator and either approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove.


9. Additional meetings may be requested by the applicant and or their architect to review design work in progress or to consider issues that may arise.

Design Guidelines for New Construction


The following are recommended and not recommended guidelines for new façade construction.


Recommended


Maintain compatibility with the downtown district through proper scale, color, design patterns, roofing, windows, and other elements distinctive to the district.


Infill buildings (new buildings between adjacent to existing buildings) should be placed in a plan parallel to and with the same setback as the adjacent building(s).


Use sand mold or semi-smooth faced brick of red, pink, cream, or light brown color. Use appropriately colored mortar (red or gray). Corbeled brick, soldier coursing and other brick patterns similar to original structure patterns should be encouraged.


 Window patterns and styles should be compatible with historic buildings. Repetitive patterns on the second stories are encouraged. Street level display windows should be compatible with historic buildings.


Building facades should terminate at the upper level with a parapet wall of masonry, which can be straight or could have a corbelled brick or brick patterns. 


Standing seam metal roofing on sloped roofs can be encouraged if proper colors are used.


Signs should be simple, flat against buildings, of good design compatible with historic buildings.


A color palette should be used that is complimentary to the building’s surroundings.

Every attempt to duplicate exact period architecture should be made.


All necessary permits would need to be pulled through the Construction Code Authority and the Imlay City Zoning Administrator’s Office.


Not Recommended


Single story buildings should be discouraged when between multi story buildings or where the low scale will detract from the downtown district’s cohesive appearance.


Do not set new buildings back from the face of adjacent buildings or from the setback line of other buildings on the street.


Natural (silver colored) aluminum is not recommended


Mansard roofs or canopies at the secondary cornice (street level display windows) or at rooflines are not compatible with historic architecture.


Do not use wide vertical metal fascia or other similar fascia to terminate.


Back lit plastic signs, projecting two sided signs and oversized signs.


All necessary permits would need to be pulled through the Construction Code Authority and the Imlay City Zoning Administrator’s Office.


Design Guidelines for Rehabilitation of Existing Buildings


The following are recommended and not recommended guidelines for the rehabilitation of existing façades.


Recommended


Windows may be replaced with similar windows of wood (preferred) or of aluminum with a clading of dark bronze finish. Windows should be of the same height.


Preferred treatment of windows would be the retention of checkrail patterns (4 over 4 windows, etc.)


Awnings of appropriate design are encouraged for display windows and for upper story windows.


Reconstruct window brows that are missing.


Reconstruct cornices where missing.


Remove mansard roofs and other non-confirming design elements.


Removing existing non-conforming materials such as wood or metal siding, aggregate faced panels, porcelain enamel panels, etc.


Remove non-conforming signs, large plastic letters, back lit plastic signs, etc.


A color palette should be used that is complimentary to the building’s surroundings.


Not Recommended


Natural (silver) aluminum replacement windows.


Covering over original architecture with wood siding, metal, aggregate faced panels, plaster, porcelain enamel or other contemporary siding.


Removal of cornices, windows brows, other original detailing.


The use of back-lit plastic signs, two sided signs, plastic letters or large signs.

Agreement for Façade Loan Architectural Assistance


The City of Imlay City Facade Corporation provides up to $1,000 in architectural assistance from a licensed architect for business owners and building owners located within the Downtown TIF District.


The purpose of the Façade Loan Fund is to encourage building and businesses owners to upgrade downtown buildings in a manner appropriate to the era of the building. The mission, design guidelines and procedures for the Façade Loan Program are provided in the accompanying Façade Loan Fund Procedures and Design Guidelines.


RECITALS


1. The Imlay City Facade Corporation is authorized to improve land and construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, equip and improve any buildings with the downtown development district for the use in whole or in part of any public or private persons or corporation.


2. The Board of Directors of the Imlay City Façade Corp has adopted a Development Plan authorizing the Façade Corp to provide public funds to assist in the restoration and revitalization of development area storefronts to provide an appearance that is aesthetically pleasing and complementary to the existing businesses.


3. The Imlay City Façade Corporation has adopted Program Guidelines for a Façade Loan Program to encourage high-quality and historically sensitive building improvements within the Downtown TIF District.


4. ____________________________ has requested architectural assistance from the Imlay City Façade Corporation and agrees to abide by the program procedures and requirements.  


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree to the following on the ___ day of _______:



______________________________ shall utilize the architect recommended by the Imlay City Façade Corporation for the development of sketches and limited design drawings.


In consideration for compliance with the Façade Loan Program guidelines, the applicant shall receive the aforementioned architectural assistance that will not exceed $1,000 from a licensed architect.


Before considering a loan for the applicant from the Imlay City Façade Loan Corporation Fund, the proposed design shall be approved by the Imlay City Façade Corporation.


If the applicant fails to proceed with the implementation for the approved façade design through the Façade Loan, or any other sources of funds, the applicant shall be liable for a charge of $500.00 for the architectural services.


__________________________

_________________________


Executive Representative




Applicant


- 10 -





From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; "byockey@imlaycity.org";

jkempf@imlaycity.org; "jmontoya@icdda.com"; kjorgensen@icdda.com; "jgenord@icdda.com";
sdavis@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com

Cc: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
Subject: Week Ending November 22
Date: Friday, November 22, 2024 2:57:00 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Hello Board Members,
 
Just checking in to give you a quick update on DDA activities this week.
 
I hope you’ve all seen the installation start of our holiday décor!  The DPW put up the light pole
décor and Summit Illuminations will be working on Lamb Steele Park decorations starting
tomorrow. Just in time for the snow to fall!
 
Both RFP (landscaping and Irrigation) were due today by noon.  We received 2 bids for irrigation
and 3 for landscaping.  Chris and I will be doing the bid openings this afternoon at 3:00 pm and
will have the results on our next meeting agenda.
 
Steve Robbins and I presented the Third Street property purchase agreement to City
Commission on Tuesday night.  As I anticipated, we met with some opposition and valid
concerns from the Commissioners.  The overall consensus however was for negotiations to
continue and for a revised PA to be brought forth to commission on December 3rd.  I met with
both Joi and Craig this afternoon and we agreed to have the city attorney draft a new document
adding the following elements:

1. A deed restriction for no residential construction
2. Indemnification clause
3. City leadership must be consulted and agreeable to any future sale to a private

entity, if not, they have the first right to purchase for our investment cost.
The other item discussed is the old sign shop and whether or not it should be included in the
offer – if it continues to be included that would mean that the DDA would be responsible for
the demolition costs.
If 3 or more DDA Board members wish to call a special meeting to discuss this further before
the PA goes to City Commission, please let me know, otherwise this will be on our agenda for
December 9th.  Please plan to attend the city commission meeting on Dec 3rd if you would like
to witness or participate firsthand.
 
I spent a good deal of time drafting our informational meeting packet for the 9th and sending
out meeting notices to all tax collecting authorities in our district.
 
Chris has been a tremendous help this week getting the fall décor taken down, distributing
WinterFest posters and organizing the vendors for Kringle Market.
 

72

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org
mailto:wbargen@icdda.com
mailto:srobbins@icdda.com
mailto:ndocherty@icdda.com
mailto:byockey@imlaycity.org
mailto:jkempf@imlaycity.org
mailto:jmontoya@icdda.com
mailto:kjorgensen@icdda.com
mailto:jgenord@icdda.com
mailto:sdavis@icdda.com
mailto:jshattuck@icdda.com
mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org



As a reminder city hall will be closed both Thursday and Friday next week for the holiday, and I
have scheduled an extra vacation day to travel on Wednesday to see my favorite littles.  You
can expect your Board packet on the 5th, if you need anything in the meantime, please let me
know. 
 
I wish all of you a wonderful Thanksgiving weekend spent doing your favorite things!
 
Gratefully,
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City
 
150 North Main Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307  |  Mobile: 586-801-0166
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org
 

 

73

mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org

	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024
	ADPF51F.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024

	Imlay City - Rotary Park Proposal.pdf
	Imlay Rotary 3 a
	Imlay Rotary 3 b
	Imlay Rotary 3 c
	Imlay Rotary 3 d
	Imlay Rotary 3 e
	Rotary Park - Imlay City - Option 3 Model (1)
	Rotary Park - Option 3 - Quote

	ADP6CD4.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024

	ADP8272.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024

	ADP83D2.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024

	ADP7616.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024

	City Allocated Expenses.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP2702.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting December 9, 2024




